
UN&T~D NATIONS 965th Meeting 

G •• ,, =- . . ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNC,IL 
. Twenty-third Session 

f 

OFFICIAL RECORDS 

Wednesday, 24 April 1957, 
at 8 p.m. 

NEW YORK 

CONTENTS 
PDIJI 

Agenda item 13 : 
United Nations Children's Fund .••.•..••••• ,........... 51 

Agenda item 14: · 
Review of the membership of the United Nations. Refu-

. gee Fund Executive Committee ...• , . . . . • • . . . • • . . • • • • 56 

President: Mr. ~ohammad MIR KHAN ·(Pakistan)..· 

Present: ;!. 

·The represe11tatives of the fallowing countries: Ar­
gentina, Brazil, :Canada, China, Dominican Republic, 
Egypt, ·Finland, France, Greece, Indonesia, Mexico, 
Netherlands, Pakistan, Poland, Union of Soviet So­
c.hHst Republics, United· Kingdom of Gr~at Britain 
and Northern I·reland, United States of America, 
Yugoslavia. 
· Obserrvers from the following countries: Bulgaria, 

Chile, Hungary, India, Israel, IWy, Japan, Philippines, 
Romania. 

The representatives of the following specialized agert':' 
des: International Labour Organisation, Food. and 
Agticulture Organization of the United NatioQ!s, United 
Nation'S Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organiza­
tion, International Ci!Vi'l Aviation Org~nization, World 
:aeatth Organization. 

tbennore, in an effort to , overcome the shortage of 
:trained staff,. the Board had approved .in principle the 
idea that UNICEF rshould -assist with the ~training of 
paediatricians and medical· officers. 
3. 'Dhe most important programme in disease 'COlltrol 
was the anti-malaria campaign. The number of coun­
tries, receiving aid in eradieation . c::anipaigttts totalled 
twenty-six, while a further t~enty•one were receiving 
assistance in control or , pilot projects. It was ·still 'too 
early to draw conclu,sions on the eradication campaigns 
in the Americas and in the Easterv. Mediterranean, since 
most o£ · them were sHU in their ea.dy organizational 
'stages. ·In the Eastern Mediterranean, there had -been 
some delay in establishing the necessary administrative 
:structure. In tropical Africa, teChniques for interi:upting 
t.he transmission of malaria still had to be· elaborated. 

· 4. · The woblem <>f finding fur:thet means to improve 
child nutrition. was 1"eceiv.ing the closest attention~ The 
Fund was· seekit1.g to promote a.. wider distribu,tion of 
milk thTough ··supplementary chHd-rfee9ing programmes 
and milk conservation and. to find other ·suitable manu­
factured sources of protein. At its session in Apri119~7, 
the Executive Board ·had also decided. that UNICEF 
tshould encourage the teaching of rural families to make 
the best use of available· and possible 1ocal food re­
~saurces; That naturally would· necessitate an educa­
Honal ddve in the field of nutrition 1n rthe under­
developed , countries, where the po.pulation lacked 
pul'lC.basing power and gte\V its own food. 

5. A·s far as the financial aspects were concerned, the 
income of UNICEF from all sources in 1956 'had been 

AGENDA ITEM 13 approximately $19.8 million. The increase of ·$2.3 mil-
United Nationf:f Children's F~nd (E/2937) lion over 1955 wa:s due to increased contributions both 

from government and from private sources .. The num-
1. Mr. KITAHARA (Ghaiiinan of the UNICEF 1ber of con~buting. Govetnmenlf:\S bad ri·sen from 
Committee on .Administ1"ative Budget), introducing the · seventy-two m 1955 to eighty-one in 1956. 'l'hat num-
T.eport of the Executive Board of :the United Nations 1ber, however, ~uld ·not be expected to rise much 
Children',s Fund (E/2937), 'Said if:hat during !the period further, and if the goai.of $30 million was to be reached. 
under review UNICEF ·had ·shown a steady expansion by 1960, as envis~ged by the E:xz.ro:tive Director, the 
and then! had -been a 'saHsfactory improvement in the present con:f:Ti.butws would have lf:o give even greater 

. quality of its aid to Gove~nments. An allocation amount- support. 
ing to $12 million had 1been ·approved in October 1956 6. He welcomed the fact that the tt)-Ordination · u:f 
and, at the !Special emergency :session in December, a UNICEF activities with :the activities. of othe:f::~nited 
further $700,000 had been allocated to meet the relief 
need·s of Hungarian children and mothers, and $110,000 Nations organs hacl proceeded satisfactorily. He hoped 
rfor the assistance of children and mother.s ·evacuated that that aspect would be constantly 'borne :in mind 
from the Port Said area. At its meeting held early in with a view to guaranteeing maximum efficiency. 
April1957, the Executive Board had approved an alto- 7. M·r. CHENG (China) said that the plan of opera-
cation of awroximately $8 million for 44 programmes tion approved by the Ex;ecutive Board aJj_)Qearecl mOtte 
in 35 countries. The Executive Board hoped that, in encouraging than ever and both the n1.ilnber of pro:.. 
1957, ov~r 45 million children and nu1'1sing i1Jd pregnant grammes and • the . number of countries aJSsisted had 
mothers would · ,benefit from the princtpal large- increased constderably. 
scn;le disease-tOnttol campaigns and cltild-feeding pro-- 8. One ·significant measure taken. by the ~';ecutive 
gr~lJ'les aided by UNIC~F. The Fund w~s eurrently Board- in 1956 bad been its decision to proceed with· 
asst&bng a total of 319 P!'<>gr8.'1:1Wes, of whtch 96 were an eva:lution of UNICEF-aided programmes. The .Chit-

. for 1tlaJternaJ .and child :welfa.re, .141 for dise~se control, dren'·s Fund had been 1n existence for mote than ten 
74 for nutrition and 8 for: 'Spectal emetgenctes. yea'f!s and· a more comprehensive appr~i'sa1 of its work 
2. ' In the field of maternal and child w~lf311"e, UNICEF seemed appropriate. ·such an evaluation :would assist. 
was now providing aid to siXJty-three countries. F·ur... UNICEF in framing its future policy and would also 

. Sl E/SR.965 



sa··.· Economic and Sodal Council-Tweaty·third Session 

help th~ Tecipient Governments to ·strengthen the plan .. 
ning and implementation· ofotheir national programmes. 
l~he. Executive Board had decided ·that •the Executive 
Di·rector would include !in his annual progress report 
a·1Stpecial :dlaptet on evaluation and that the Programme 
Committee would annually review the policies of assis­
ltance apPlicable to one selected .type of progratnn:1,e. 
His delegation felt that the proposed special chapter 
~ould include factua:l infonna.tion. ·on certain ·major 
types of programmes, a:long· the lines·o£ the report pub­
lished by the Executive Director under The title "A."1 
ar;¥a.isa1 of major progranin~e trend$"· (E/ICEF /336/ 
Add.l). That report, however, restricted itself wholly. 
to statements of fact and contained very little appraisal, 
whereas the· specia:l chapter ,should <;ontain .at~ 'Some 
~91lclusions and suggestions based on the development 
of the various programmes. · , 

9 •.. As to the annual review of a selectecl type of pro­
grattune, the Chinese delegation welcom'f'il the fact that 
the nrst 'SUCh Teview WOUld be devoted lf:O maternal 
and child welfare. That review would. ·be made ·in 
September :..·~57, •by which .time the Tepor:t of ·the 
Joint Committee on Health Policy would ·be available. 
In that connexion, lthe possibility should .be considered 
of having rthe Bureau o£ 3ocia:l Affairs represented at 
the meetings of tl.te Joint Committee, especially. when 
the Joint Committee came to deal with the ~Tole of 
maternal and . child welfare in -broader community . de.­
velopment programmes. Lt WaJS vita:Ily .import\mt that 
the activities 0.£ the rvarious organs in the field .of com;., 
mufitty development should be integrated. 
10. The Executive H 't;.lt"d was also to be commended 
for its decisions to p·rrrv~fle emergency relief to .children 
and. ·mothers in· HrmgaKy and Austria and· to children 
and anothers evaouated frQm ·the Port Said. area in 
Egypt. The itispatch with which allocations •had .been 
rnade amply demonstrated the readiness of UNICEF 
to meet emergeney situations. · 

lL His delegation welcomed the Executive Board's 
de~~ion {~/2937, para .. 112) to .• maintain its own fund-:­
raxsmg proced~e and. not to ·follow the . proposal of 
the Negotiating Committee for Extra-Budgetary Funds. 
The i~orease in the nun1ber of contributing countries 
in 1956. shQwed. that the established proc::edure followed 
by UNICEF .left nothing to be. ~esired. 

1·2. · · MT•. DRAGO {Argentina) said that :the Executive 
Board's Teport · affOrded futther prOQf '()If the great 
aclriev:~ents of UNICEF. The funds had been distrib­
uted .iii a very fair and satisfactory manner and millions 
of mother a . and children in all 1::egions of . rflhe world 
were r~apitig .the benefits. P.atticularly welcome .results 
:wer~ :being obtained in the field of. malari~ eradicati,on 
and control, and the projects. ~pproved by the Execu-
tive Board augured well :for the ·future. . · · · . · 

134 · A:lthough it was. in full agreement with. the ,report 
(E/293/) as a whole, the. Argentine de1egation regret­
ted the Board"s · deci,si<?n not to change its fund-raising 
proc~dure artd · to reJect the proposal Jrtade .. by the 
Negotiating Cormni.ttee for Extra-Budgetary · Funds. 
He ho~ that the Boa:rd would at some later stage 
accept the minority a:rgumen.ts ~et forth at the ena 

· "Of chapter VI of the . ·report and reconsider the -who1e 
·position. · · 
'14 •. 'Mr. KOTSCHNIG (United States of America) 

'sati., ··.n that. th·.· .·~· .Execu.· ... tive B03lr! ... d's T~ ... . (J?/29.. 3 .. 7rpre­
''Sented .. an ~S1Ve record of the a.dttrirab1e efforts 
ot"lJNICEF ·to improve the lot of ehildren· throughout 
lthe w.arld. It was especially .gratifying rtQ note· that the · 

:number ·of pl~ges had ~ain increased: Th~ contribu,tion 
of $9.7 million which the United States had· inade to 
UNICEF the previQus year was one which 'the United 
States Gova:nment was truly~ happy ~o make, ais ti.t 
~reflected the 1nterest of ¢he entire Atilencan people:, 

15. Much excellent work had been done in ·1956 in 
the field of disease ~trol and especial-ly in malaria 
eradication. In that connexion, he noted that the esti­
mated .future annu~ allocations {:or malaria eradication 
came . to a:lmost $9. :million. Hi•s delegation hoped that 
that programme! vital as .it .was, would be kept in its 
proper per$peetive a.nd that . the other a-spects of· the 
work of "9NICEF would not be neglected. . · 

16. 'V{ith reference to maternal and child welfare, his · 
delegatxon was rotnewhat concerned at the proposal to 
enend activities in that ·field tby offering grants-in-aid 
to m~c;:al. schools in ot!der to strengthen !the teaching 
of paediatrics. Urgent measures wete admittedly ·neces­
·sary to remedy the shoti:age .of qualified staff, but there 
wa~s alWa.ys a risk that such a procedure, once intro­
d.u~ed, might lead to excessive requests for similar :sub;. 
s1di~s and ·S~t a questi01lable precedent for other United 
N at10ns asststan~e programmes. . · . · 

17. Mr. GOZARD (FTance) said that the EJrecutive 
Board1s: ~eport (E/2937) was, as usual, an. ·objective 
and. senous document. It •showed 1that funds were ·being· 
wisely divided among the different programmeS. Over 
$6 million had .been devoted in 1956 1to the malaria­
eradication programme and substantial ·results had al­
readi been achieved iii 'Latin America. Certain diffi­
culties' had· been encountered in Africa, 1>ut those would 
doubtl~s. be solved ·by a-esolute action on the part of 
Governments an~ the ~terest<;d agencies .. The ·report 
showed that the· campa1gn agamst other diseases, iSUdh 
as yaws and trachoma, was proceeding favourably; 

18. Noteworthy ~progress ~had been made in 1956 J~ 
the .field oif maternal and child welfare and 'UNICEF ' 
was actively encouraging Governments Ito improve and 
develop health and·social~services. The ·Children's Fund 
was also participating in certain community development 
programmes,· thus making· an !important.· contribution 
.in a .. fiel~ of the g:~test. interest ro rthe Council apd to 
the Soo~ .conurusSlon.· 

19. All ~hope ~mmples •showed !that the various Gov~ 
~mmen~ and or:gamzatiOilJS had ·co-pperated~ clQsely 
:t<n evol':lng long-term ~rogrammes destgned to unprQve 
,!he 1$0Ctal. ~d econonuc ;Status of . human 1beings.. The 
unplementation of such progr~es, however_, required 
a .~arge;attd qualified staff. In 'l"~entyears, 1t bad .be• 
come· i.noreasingly clear that UNICEF ~should not 'liinit 
its acti;viti~s in . that field · to the training'· of auxiliary 
·stuff, b?t. ·~h~t i.t sl;tould . ~·so. assist. ~with .the training 
of paediatrlCia:ns ,and pu.bbc ~h~th officers. The French 
delegation. :welcomed the fact that ±hat need had been 
.recognized by .all the interested··hodies .. 

~· RemarkaPle w~~had also been dooe by· UN1iCEF 
·1n the ·field of· nutrition .. Further progress bad. been 
m~e 1~ •the •searcll £or new · lSOUJrees 'df proteins, . arid 
l;JNICEF pro,r&sed to extend its ·activities 'to the ectu-

, .catiortal side of .the problem. In. proceedi.ng With tliose 
.!ong-tertn: plan&~. ho~ever, :UNIC~F had rtot .neglected 
11ts · emergency duties and ithe 'Boaro had allocated 
$700,000 for · eJssistan(:~ to Hungarlafl ,cl1itdll"en. · · 
21. The French ·.<!~legation welC0111ed ·the· Executive 
130a.rd's decision -r~artiiug the 1utur~ .. eva:luatioo of 
1ts programmes (E/2937, paras. 36 'to··4JI:), as such a 
process. would rev~ the true tValue of the results at-



ready obtain6d and en.sure,. even greater successes in 
the future. 1\ · 

22. In conclu~i~n, he pr~1ed that the Cou~cil ·should 
£o;mally take note with •satisfaction ·of the report sulr 
mttted iby the Executive Board. , 
23 ... Mr. GILMOUR. (Canada) welcomed the fact ··that· 
lthe Bqard had reaffirmed its intention to continue its 
major effolils in the established fi,elds of child nutrition,·. 
maternal and child welfare and disease· ·cont1"ol. At-. 
though there were many new fields in which money and· 
effort could profitably be extended, the' Fund was not 
large enough to deal with additi~a1 problems. .. · 
24. The Canadian deleg~tion ,shared the · hope,' ex­
pressed by the Executive. Director of UNICEF, that 
the money· available would increase substantially in .the 
next few yeafls. As the funds in~~sed, the Canadian , 
delegation would he prepared to examine ~ympatheti­
cally neV\T fields of endeavour for UNICEF to explore. 
25. 1-"he Canadjan d~legation had· a:lrea.dy stated in 
rthe F1fth Comnl!ttee. of the Genera~ ~8setnbly1 that it . 
l!egretted. .the Executiye Board's dectstOn ·not ;to .recom­
mend the adoption Of the rfund-raising procedure re­
rommended ·by the Negotiating Committee on· Extra­
~tidgetary Funds.2 Th.e Canadian delegation still be­
heved that such a procedure would have assisted not 
only the two refugee funds (the United Nations Relief 
and Works Agency for Pa!estine Refugees in the Near 

· East· and the Umted Nat10ns Refugee Fund), which 
were in · the weakest financial condition, :but a:lso 
UNICEF !itself. . · · . 
26. The Executive Director was to be congratulated 
on. obtaining funds from the R6ckefeHer Foundation 
for tesearch in the field of nutrition, with special em.:. 
pha_sis on the production of cheap. and nourllshing fOods 
'l"eadily available in areas where .t-he. problem of insuffi­
cient diet was most severe (see E/2937, para. 93). 

. 27. The emergency ·meeting held ,by UNICEF· in. 
Dec~b.er ~956 -had demonstrated the. funJ4's ability ~o 
ac~ qu1ckly m the face of an :emergency and the effective 
manner in which the ·Fund detri•sed programmes· based 
on ,first-'hand observation .. 

28 .. Mr. :eARNES ·(United Kingdom) expressed the 
wh?leheart~ 1support of hi~ Government for UNICEF, 
which C011lttnued to do invaluable w.ork in all parts of 
the world in the field of maternal and child welfare. A 
riieasute oif its achievenient was .tthe fact that' in 1956 

. stime 30 million mothers and children · had benefited 
' from i~s principal programmes. · The .total number:· ex­

pected to tecehre assistance in 1957 was estimated at 
over 45 minion. · · · · 

29. The United Kingdom Government had increased 
its oontribution to. UNICEF f~om £200,000 in 1956 
to £220,000 ~hi 1957. Considering the United King­
dom's current .financial problems, .the increase waJS a 
measure of the impotta.nce which the Government at-
tached to the Fund.·. · · · ' .. . 
. ~0. In view of. :the fact that the prospects for -a iur.ther 
1n~rea.se in .the liJCOme of UNICEF in .1957 were good, 
the Executive Dtrector and the E:xeoutive Board 'Should 
P.lan ahead with a. view rto e:.~ttending further the (>pera­
,fiol1s of the Fu~d •. The Fund's planning had been sound 
;nd prud~t, its present commitments 'beif}g· well within 
1ts financtal.Jtesources. ~owever, the Umted Kingdom 

· 1 ~ee · O'Qicial Recortis pf tlie General Assembly, Eleventh 
Sesston1 Fifth Commtttee~ paras. 45 to 48, .. · · .. 

·~ lbiiJ.;, · Anne~es1 a~enda item 45, document A/31~4, para. 1~. 

delegation Wished to emphasize the need for a continua ... 
,tion of cohservative plin-rifng in ·the interests of the 
orderly development of· the Fund's opera~on·s and ·to 
stress the damage which would .be· caused H the Fund 
ever overreached itself. "-"·~) 

3~. The United Kingdom Goverrunent was grateful 
to UNICEF fur the valuable assistance it had given · 
and rorttinued to .· gi'Ve to many territories dependent 
upon the United Kingdom and for th~ efficient and 
·smooth co-operation of the ·UNICEF Administration 
with the authorities· of the territo~es eoncerned. . 

32. . The Ui!ited . Kingdom delegatiotl. congratulate<! · 
tt!te Fund on 1ts ex-cellent work and su~rted the adop­
tion;of the .report of the Executive Board (E/2937). 

~3. Mh~s RADIC (Yugoslavia) note.d with satisfac ... 
tton 1the pr-ogress achieved by UNICEF ·t:tom year·to 
year. In 1957 ·the Fund would .be entering a. new phase 
in which· many PJ:O~es. would. be coiD!Pleted and 
others would reqwre a new approach~ ·The question· of 
co!.or-dina.tion ·between . UNICEF . and the specialized 
agencies assumed greater importance in· view of· the 
,Jarge~S<Za:le. !()rogranunes ~~at were·. ·being · ~ried. out. 
Co-ordination at :the national level ·was ·also essential 
as the .UNICEF pro~ammes would have to .be iricorpo­
rnted tnto over-all national ,development plans. Govern­
ments were taking an .increased interest in .UNICEF 
and relied on its ~~ntinued assistance,· tm.rticularly with 
respect to the trammg of personnel at all ·levels. , 

34. The Childr~'i's Futld shouid continue to maintain 
a balanced prog~amme~ as -it .had done 'in. the. past, 
·becaU'se the needs of the world far exceeded the Fund's 
~t.esourees. Annual contributions amt;lunting to. $$0 roil­
lion ~ouldbe required:;b)Pi960·m order totomplete the 
programmes currently under way. Govern:lllents should 
therefore be prepared · to increase .their contribUtions 
to the Fund. · · ·· · 

35. Mr. SAMY . (Egypt) . (jb~ed, ~that Emt had 
constantly ·supported, the humanitarian activities of 
UNICEF. It .thanked .the Fund for .the· assistance it 
had ~eceived and hoped to receive in the· future. An ex­
pansion of the -Fund'·s activities and finartcia:l.resources 
would be most welcome .in V!iew of the 'continued need 
fQr long~ge programmes to pr:omote the welfare of 
future generations. · · , · 

36. T-he Egyptian delegation uoif:ed with ·:satisfaction 
the expa.n~ion of the ·UNICEF progratntnes ·in mater­
ml and cluld welfare, nutrition aDd disease eradication. 
It hoped that the.Fund yvould one d~y be·in a position 
to undertak~ such. proJects as children's recreation 
camps . and. :sped~ .assistance to tr~ndicapped children 
a:s part of 1ts a:sststance to ¢011Unumty and •S'Qcial devel- . 
ropment programmes. Aid ¢o handicapped children had 
already ·been extended •by UNICEF to three ~untries. 

37' • . Siinplifi~tiori of tJ'te administrative madliney 
of UNICEF 1n respect of elt!ergency progratt11t1es would 
~~rve ~ usefu! pufP<?se as t;lnldren and mopters required 
ammedt~te rud du.rmg crtses. · Emergenc1es shou·ld b.e 
dealt w1th ~ the. 'spot •. T~e emet~geney arising out of 
the events 111 the. Port Satd . ~rea was a Q.se in point. 
':rhousands of 1tlOthefls and clltldren had lost. their fami ... 
ties· and belongings ·and had been left to wander amid 
the.:ruins of .thei:r homes. They had required inunediate 
a:s~t·stan~e. ';rime ~o1;tld not ·be lost in establishing com ... 
n:utte~s of .mvestigat10n · to measur~ the gravity of the 
sitttatio;t and to. r~end .remedtal. measures. In ·that 
~onnexton,·. the. qu~st10n of p~ogramm7 priorities was 
wpo~tan.t. W·hile It was adtnittect1y difficult to deter-



mine t]le pri?rity .to be given •to .an emerg~cy, ~ useful · 
yaTdstick· 1n1ght he .. the •urgency of rt:he st.tuatton, th~ 
abi·lity 'Of the .(;ountry cqncerned to meet. it~ and. its 
1'eadiness. ito co~ operate in !the \\'elief programmes. 
38. ~he :Egyptian delega?on sincerely appreciated the 
allocation m $110,000 which had 1been granted. by the 
F!Uld to allev~ate, for a period of three months1 the 

, sufferings of 40,000 mothers. and .cllildren who had 
been evacuated from the· Por:t Said area .to emergency 
housitig ··in pther parts of the country. It ·should he 
noted; pow(lv:er, that the total number of refugees had 
been 150,000,. over 60 per cent of them mothers and 
children~ · · · · · · · 

1\ 

89 ... The increasing. nmnber of children a:mong the 
Arab 'l"efugees from Palestine was a · prqblem which 
1should. engage .the attention of UNICEF.· The Fun:d 
might usefully make fl. token eontribution to· the welfare 
of rthf! m~thevs and·. children roncemed. · 
40. 'The Egyptian Govenui1ent noted: with satisfaoti()ll 
the · Fun~·s po1i1CY of ~panded assistance for training 
in maternal and chi:ld health work;. The Fund'•s efforts 
would , certainly rcontribtite . to the alleviation of :the 

. existing ·sh01:tage of qualified personnel ·to '<=a;r;ry . out 
and supervise prQg.rammes in the .field Of maternal and 
Child health. · . · ·. . . 
41.. Mr. EFFENDI NuR (Indo~e~ia) expressed hi~ 
delegation's. deep appreciation of tlie achievements of 
UNICEF during ·the period ·under !'eview. Two-.thirds 
of the cl.tildren of the world lacked adequate food, cloth­
ing, shelter and proteetion against disease. The F.und 
assisted them witl;lout distinction as to race, . .religion or 
nationality. 'M()IXeover, it was not influenced by political 
considerations. . . . . . . 
42~ . The Fund should maintain its policy of pr<m1oting 
·~e principle o£ se:lrf-h~~·. Foreign ai~ ~as <>!llY an in;. 
·centive and the work 1mbated by an tntemational :team 
should be continued by a properly ;trained national ·sta:ff. 
That principle had been,.·fully applied in the assistance 
glven . by UNICEF to Indonesia1 where irriportant 
progra1n1nes . were being •carried out in ·the fields . of 
dirsease : iCQlltro1, · materna:l and . child · welfare,· arud 
nutrition. · · · · · 

43. Ind~esia, despite its financial difficulties,. hfl.d in­
creased its contribution. to UNICEF ,for 1955 and 1956 
frQtn $100,000 to $110,000. · · · 
.44 •. · The Indonesian delegation noted with ·satisfaction 
the ~ansion of·ifhe activities. of .UNICEF as a .result 
of the OYer-all increase in contributions. J.n that con­
tteJdon, the ~tribution o£. the. United States of Amer­
.ica1 which il?. 1956 had exceeded the total. received from 
~ll other countries by Sl)1lle. $2. millit»:i~ was invaluable. 
45. Whlle generally in agreement with the Fund''s 
distribution of allocations, Indonesia supported . the 
view -that a more balanced a.pt>topriation, in the area 
m disease contrbl, which ·had aniotmted to '57.p pet cent 
of .. the tota.l.alloeations in l956,.·should be. worked out. 
Wl}lle rt:J\te importance of the l~rg~«.ale malari~.erad!­
cation ,Pt<>gratpme cou~d ~not he .. over·emJ>~aS1zed, 1t 
spould ,be. c.arned out wtthtn th.·e fram. e!Vo. r~. ·. ofthe.p. r:o­
~es.o£ the World H~~Organ1zation (W~O) 
Jtatllet than ·by UNICEF, whidl would .then be 1n a 
4>Q$iti~ to intensify :its other aetirviti~. · , 
46. The Indonesian delegation ·a.gr~eed. ·with the ~ew 
·that the. reserve of unallocated ·resources 'should ·oo 
maintained, and with the ~~ty ·opinion: .con¢eming 
'a. new · prQC(Klure :for the r1Iedging of contributio.n:s . a:s 
:set ®tin Qhapter .Vl of the repont of .the Executive .. 

. ' 

Bo~rd JE/'1/J3'l). With ~espect to the que$pon of~~ 
ordinatton, further attempts •should be made to ,elu;m .. 
naJte needles's qupli~tio:n ·of effor·t. b~weeJ;! 'f:JNICEF, 
the Food and Agncultu1:e Or~zation (FAO), the 
World Health Organization, the 'Technica:l As$is1:a.lice 
Administration arid other. organs. ·. 
47. It expr~ssed its appreciation of the continued 
suP,PPrt · which UNICEF received from the non- . 
g<Werhmenta:l organizations. ·, · · · · 

48. MT. :SAKSIN (Union·~ Soviet Socialist. Repub~ 
lies) said that the . USSR WaJS . giving mat~al and 
mor~ 'SUpport to ~~e work of UNICEF, and d~ew at­
tent~on to/the posttlve work d<m,e by the Fund 1n,. 1956 
in the .fi.cld of maternal and child wel·fare and/ disease 
control. He iu:r:.ther pointed out :that the ·Soviet Union 
was paying greart attention to maternal and child wet~ · 
f~re and cited· concrete exa;mples of· his country's · ex­
perience rin that field. He also· stressed the part played 
by women in Soviet .society and ~their active participa­
tion in !Socially useful work. The Sta~e had devel~ 
a: comprehensive programme of assistance rto mothers, 
~tant mothers and children.· Free. health are, in­
cluding maternity care, ~ie for dlildTen ··in s.pe.cia:l 
institutions, ·free educationj organization of <:hildr.eri!s 
~eisure' arid other measures taken !by the Soviet-Govern• 
1111ent ensured the effective. protection. of the health Qf 
mothers and ohildren and ,fhe deve!lopment. of .a healthy 
new generation.. · · · · ·. · .. . . 

49. Miss PELT (Netherlands) said that the Nether­
lands Government took a keen interest in the work ·tyf' 
UNICEF and appreciated the co-operation the !Fund 
received from WHO and FAO~ It .supported the view 
that a comprehensive eva:ltiation of the Fund'~s pr~ . 
g+amtnes should be .undertaken. The Fund's pro-­
grammes should ~take into account the ove~'"'3li dev:elOIF" 
ment plans of. recipient Governments and ... should .. fit 
into .those plans. . ' . · . 
50. '.Dhe Nether lands Go-vernment hoped · that the 
Fun(\ . would c6ntinue to' work a1ong the constructiv~ 
lines· it had adopted in the past. · · · 

·51. Mr. MACHOWSKI (Pol~d) ·expressed hi:s 
country'·s appreciation of rthe work don.e by UNICEF 
du·ring rthe period. under review. Poland would continue 
to contribute to ·its activities .. It was a member .of the 
Executive Board and approved the repot1 (E/2937) 
which it had submitted. 'f.he· •success 9£ the Fuoo''s ma­
terna! and ·child welfare programmes was· particulat"ly 
gratifying. Although the ·anti-malaria .prog,ammes · de­
served ·support, his delegation •had som.e doubts a:s to · 
whether it had been wise to allocate $10· million, ahnost 
50 per cent of .the t<ftal allocations, ;for Jthern: O~er 
progra.tnmes had . achieved . good results. and JUstified 
the financial sacrifices ·which h~ beeri made. . · 
52~ . Ther.e were now eighty-one contributin,g .countries 
arid it was to he hoped that all members would continue 
to support the Fund. . 

7 

- · - • • 

53. Miss RAU .(World Federation of Un1ted Nations 
Associatio.ns) .said that the period covered by the re­
po:rt· of the UNICEF Exeeutive Board· (E/2937) 
under · i"eview. was a la:ndmark m the history·· Of the 
Childten~s \Fund. For the fit1St time, the 'Volume :of 
a5sistance given. to under-developed countries had· over• 
taken that rendered to Europe during the first yeats of 
i:'he ·life of the Fund as an emergency institution. The 
maintenance of the Funq's policy of ·self.melp was itn· 
poftant and it was essentiai that ·the co-operation re­
teived from WHo· and FAO .should .continue :and that 
.the ov~r-all developtn.ent plans .p£ recipient Govermnents 



and in particular rommunity development programmes 
shot.dd be taken into aCCQ\Ult. · · · ·· 

54. ·. The work 'Of. UNICEF tnust ·be undfrstQOd not 
only by people living in areas of need and by ±hose par­
ticipating in the iield work but a,lso by people from 
whose countries . :the bu1k. of the· .. funds ·came. Active 
Sl.lptport of UNICE,.F · through educ~tional ~ fund­
: liaising ootivities was essential and for that ·reason t:he 
World Federatiot1 o£ United Nations .A!ssociations had 
continued to w9rk in close . co11aboration with. the 
UNlCEF · admini,stration at !;1eadquarters and in ·the 
field. The Federation. appre~ated .the •remarks o£ the 
Indonesian del~tion concer-ning the <;<>ntinued ,support 
which UNICEF ·receiy.ed rfu-om non..,governmentf4 or,. 
~ganizations. The Executi'Ve Board's report noted par-· 
~<mlar~y ~he value . of 1:1-on:govemmen~a~ organizations 
1n promotmg UNI·CEF national conumttees. The grow­
ing interest . of the public in UNICEF had been re­
flected -in the recent establishment of seV-enteen ·such 
.committees. 
55. in May 1957 a meeting of Ettropean national 
committees would be held in Paris to discuss UNICEF­
aide4 activities in the field as well as the promotion of 
the 1sale of. UNl CEF greeting card$1 articles, fibns and 
other materiallll.eeded ·for public information. By taking 
the lnitiative in >~the £ormation of UNlCEF national 
eommittees through its United Nations associations 
and by participating ~n the twenty-one member ~Sub­
committees which. had been established to encourage· 
the .· suppott of non-governmental organizations fo:r 
such committees, the FederatiOn hoped to fulfil an .itn ... 
portant .part of its responsibilities :to the international 
'community. Progress and future work in . that field 
would be discussed at the next annual meeting of the 
Federation in Geneva in September 1957. 
56. Emergency programmes al•S(li ihad ,their place in 
the'work of the United N~ti911!~-~s.sociations in support 
o£ UNICEF. M~re thatt $180,000 had ·been made avail­
. able ·by Uni~ed Nations Association·s in; response to 
·Jthe request ·for. relief ·for Hungarian. clilldren and 
mothers· and tor· evacuees from Port Said. · 

51,. The Federation was happy that it had 1been able 
to co-operate with the Executive Board, other ·non­
governmental organizations and the UNICEF admini­
stration. It 1looked forwaro to further collaboration .in 
~the . work of encouraging a greater. understanding of 
the purposes, programmes. and achievements 'Of .. the. 
Fund. · 

58. Mr. NAli{ (Pakistan) associated hi'S delegation 
with previous· Speakers in paying a tribute to the .work 

·'Of UNlCEF. :Qatdstan .had heen. a .member 'Of rthe Ex­
ecutive Board ·since 1952 and had followed its work 
with close ,~;ttention. The division of the Executive 
~oard's ·rep&r~t .(E/2937) :into two rsections was. par­
ticularly welcorne and afforded a clear over-all picture 
of the multifarious activities of the Fund. · 

59. It was g;ratifying to note rthat both the amount 
. and ·n11'111:ber of contr1~u~ons had sub~tantially in­
creased. The total allocations for 1956, which amounted 
to $21.5 million, provided a good :illustlration of ·the 
·soope of the Fut1d'1s progranunes. 

60. Chapter III of the report contained . a forecaJst of 
fUture ltequests for al:locations, most of which would be 
devoted to ·malaria eradication ca.mpa.ign~S.·· Requests 
were also expected for the continuation of child ..feeding 
progra.tntnes, tineludi~ the distribution of ·skim milk. 

As needs became .. greater tbe ··Fund, w.ou1d require. a 
higher level of contributions. !111 that ll"esp:ect, his dele. 
gation 'supported lf:he reconnnendation of the Board 
{E/2937, ~~ 30) ,t:hat the Executive Ditector·'Should 
a.tscertain du.ring 1957 whether other -cliannels of· aid 
ootild he ;found rt:o meet s.ome of the needs. 
61..~ .. His dele~tion wclc<>med the (:Qlltinued growth . 
in the in~e from 1the rsale of greeting cards which, 
with t4eir wide distributi~, affor4ec1 useful .. publicity 
.for UNICEF. The allocations wh1oh had been made 
to Hungary and Egypt showed .that UNICEF was ca­
pable ~ timcly a-ssistance :in .emergencies. The Fund 
had not only endeared itself to . mothers and children 
throughout ,the world but had· aloo managed ·to preserve 
the principle of partnership with .ass~sted. ~untries by 
stimulating their a~tive ~ration :in the progratlllnes. 
62. Tbe. Fund ~s ·an organization bringing. lasting 
benefits to ~humant1:y •. ms dele~tion _fully . supported 
the work bemg done by the adtnnnstration of UNICEF 
:irt co-operation with the ~s~alized agencies and . the 
non-gnv.ernmental organizations. · 
63 ... It a:tS<>, endorsed ~e Ftench r~esentative's sug­
gestion that the Council should take note w:ith satisfac­
tion' of the E:x:ectttive Board's report . 
64: Miss BERNARDINO {Dominican· R~ublic) 
satd. that, as the ·teP?rt before the <;ouncil .(E/2937) 
showed, UNICEF was one of the Umted Nations agen­
qes·which did n1ost f9r the well ... being of humanity. It 
~as ~i<:ttJa~ly gratifying that the :fund wa~ extending 
1ts acttvJhles ,tn. the .fieid o£ maternal and child welfare. 
In 1956 UNI·CEF ·had brought aid Ito 37 million . cliU ... 
dren. and nursing and expectant mothers. It was impera­
:t!ve that the Unite? N:a?ons ~ould maintain a:n.ageney 
hl~e. UNICEF which drd .· so much to enhance tts . pre­
sFige. The Fund'~ efforts to .eradicate malaria. were par-
. tJcut~rly ·not~wotthy and , the progta~n1mes .. in Asia, 
South Amer1ca and .the Eastern Meditef'lranean were 
designed t{) put an end to one of· the gteatest scourges 
:that had ever afflicted mankind. · · .· · · · · . . [ ' . 

. 65. Her Gtwertunent would continue to contribute to 
rthe work of UNICEF and 911ce again expreSsed ~ts 
deep aPJ?!eciation d the work ·of . the administration 
.and the)~~~ti'ire Board. · . ; ~· . 
66. : Mrs. LElVO~LARSSON . (Finland}) while ex­
pressing her rounrtry'.g appreciation of the. work done 
by UNICEF, as d~scriiped in the Executive Board's 
~report ·.(Ej29~7)l tfelt tM.t more Jitlention~ght be paid · 
.to the ·organization of ltttemational sermnars for the 
·pu~e <!f ·training ~S<m.Jlel fr0111 th~ .under-developed 
·countnes as nurses, nn·dw1ves and SOCial workers. 11 

· 

67. Finland regretted that the maximum financial con­
tribution i~ rould · ~ake did no~ adequately :reflect its 
profound mterest 1n . the ,orgaruzatii'Yn. 
68. Mr .• PE~TEApO (B·razll),y ~pressed his cott11 .. 
try's sa.tisfacti~ w1th the E:xe<~uti've Board'·s ~eport 
(E/2937) and 1ts wholehearted sunnnrt for the work 
of UNlCEF. . r.f:"'·' . 

69. M·r. CARAYANNIS {Greece) tSaid that the ;re­
port indicated the exeellent wotk which UNICEF had · 

·ao:ne in the past and which dt inttended :to do in the 
future. At tbhe meeting of the Exeeutive Board in April 
1957, the Greek representative had suggested that, 
"9Nl·CEF ~arving been itt ~stence ~or ten yeaiiS, the 
twe wars .npe ior ~ eva:luation of 1ts long.,tenn pro­
g·rsmmes. He agrun stressed the need for ·sucll an 
evaluation. 

I 
·I 

I 

i 

·I 
I 

I 

I 

.I 
I 

. I 

I 

.I 



56 Eco)lomle and Social Councii-Twenty-tldrd Session 

70; ' His delegation · was glad to. give its general ap-
proval to ,the ~eport (E/2937). · . 

71. Mr. KEMSLEY (International Confederation of 
FTee .Trade Unions) said it was not strange that his 
organization strongly ·supported the work of UNICEF 
for it wa•s generally .the children of the world's workers 
who benefited most from . it. His organization, being 
in consultative status with UNICEF, had been able 
to· familiarize itself with its devoted work and endorsed 
its aims without reservation. · 

72. On $eVetal occasions the International Confedera­
tion of Free Trade Unions (ICFTU) had urged its 
123. affiliated national <:entres. in eighty-eight countries 
to give UNICEF lf:heir complete support. In many of 
:the donor countries its national affiliates were active 
on the UNICEF national committees while in almost 
a:ll ~such countries its affilialf:es had .tried rto use their 
influence to gain greater governmental support for the 
Fund. In ·still more countries, affiliates ·had been act~vely 
engaged in programmes designed to car•ry. the message 
of UNICEF to .the general public. 

73: · At the Confedemtion's international seminar in 
Mexico City in October 1956. a UNICEF ·representa­
tive had ·accepted an invitation to participate and had 
eXiplained the w<>rk of the UNICEF to sixty trade-. 
unionists · .:frotn .twenty-seven coUntries. The Fund 
would also probably be Tepresented at ·the next annual 
international seminar to l:ie held at. Banff, Canada, in 
September 1957. It was expected that eighty trade­
unionists from thirtY or more countries would attend. 

7 4. His organization and he himself had been highly 
honou.red by the fact that he had been elected as Chair­
man of the N<>n-Governmenta:l Organizations Commit­
tee of UNICEF ·for the cur·rent yeM". The Committee, 
which had been in exi-stence rfor over five yeat'ls and had 
a" membership of · fi~ty-five i!l'ternati~nal ?rganizations, 
was the only comnuttee of !International. voluntary or­
ganizations which met !regularly to 'Support a •specific 
United Nations operation. Its work was· mentioned 
in paragraphs 98, 140 and 141 of :the :report (E/2937). 
Although the Cotnm·ittee had done much useful work, 
more sti:ll remained ·to be done. So 1long as one child 
w~s suffering needlessly, it wou:ld never think of re­
laxing its efforts. 

75. ·T·he CHAIRMAN, after expressing his own ap­
pr~ation of the work of UNICEF, ·suggested :that, 
in accordance with ·the proposal made by the French 
delegation, the Council should .take note with ·satisfac­
tion o£ the report of the Executive Board of UNICEF 
(E/2937). . · . 

It was so decided. 

AG:ENDA ITEM 14, 

Review of the membe:w:ship of the United Nations 
Refugee F~d E!(ooU.tive Committee (E/2954, 

.. E/L.747) · 
76. Mr. BARNES (United Kingdom), introducing 
the draft resolution submitted jointly by Brazil, France, 
the Netherlands~ the United Kingdom and the United 
States of America (E/L.747), recalled that at its fourth 
session .the United Nations Refugee Fund (UNREF) 
Executive Committee had unanimously supported a 
proposal that the Government of Canada ·should be 
added to lhe members of .the Cotnmittee. His delegation 
agreed with the Executive Committee's view that the 
oontr·ibution which Canada had made toward·s the 
settlement of refugee problem·s ntade it admirably suited 
to serve on ·the ·Committee. He hoped. that the Council 
would unanimously adopt the joint draft 1"esolution, 
which confirmed the membership o£ the States currently 
serving on the Executive Committee, proposed an ap ... 
propriate amendment ,to 'resolution 565 (XIX) and 
recommended the addition of Canada :to the member­
ship of the Committee. 
77. Mr. PENTEADO (Brazil), Mr. KOTSCHNIG 
(United States of America), Miss BERNARDINO 
(Dominican Republic), M·r. TOUSSAINT (France), 
Mr. CARAYANNIS (Greece), Mr. DRAGO (Argen­
tina} and Miss PELT (Netherlands) supported the 
joint draft resolution. 
78. M.r. SAKSIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub­
lics) requested a separa·te vote on paragraph 3 of the 
joint draft resolution. 

Paragraph 3 of the joint draft resolution was adopted 
unanimously. . 

The joint draft resolution as a whole was adopted 
by 16 votes to none, with 2 abstentions. 
79. ·Mr. SAKSIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub­
lics), explaining his vote, said his delegation had been 
;glad to 'support the proposal to ~d Canada to the 
membership of UNREF Executive Committee but had 
been ·Unable to vote :in favour of the joint d.raft resolu­
tion as a whole. The Soviet Union had not participated 
in the work of UNREF .because it felt that the only 
correct wny to solve. the problem. of ·refugees was Ito 
encourage their return to their native .lands. 
80. Mr. MACHOWSKI (Poland) •said that hi'S dele­
gation, while voting in favour of Ca:nada' s membership, 
had abstained on the joint draft resolution as. a whole 
because of its general attitude to UN REF. 
81. Mr. GILMOUR (Canada) thanked the me:mbers 
of ·the Council for their support and said his delegation 
~ooked forward to par.ticipating in the work of the 
UNREF .Executive Committee. 

The meeting rose at 5.30 p.m. 

--------------·------------:----------~.-----_._ k';);l.,-,:;(1;..""; .... 

Printed in U.S.A. S-13361-] une 195~' -~-~.;,r:50 




